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Brazos River Authority              

        
April 6, 2016 
 

Request for Proposals 
457(b)/401(a) Plan Record Keeping, Participant Education, and Investment Services  

RFP No. 16-04-938 
Addendum No. 1 

 
It is the responsibility of the Proposer to assure and guarantee by acknowledging the receipt of this 
Addendum in the Proposal that the Proposer has received the Addendum in its entirety, and that the 
Proposer accepts all conditions contained herein. 
 
Listed below are responses to questions received as Friday, April 1, 2016.  
 
Minimum Qualifications 
 
BRA received several questions which were substantially the same relating to the minimum qualifications 
outlined in the RFP.  We have consolidated requests for clarification regarding minimum qualifications in 
one response.   
 
Question:  Under the minimum requirements, it states that the proposing firm must currently provide sole-
provider administration to a minimum of five 457 and five 401(a) DC plans, each with assets of $100 
million or more.  Since the combined plan total is around $10 million, can you confirm that the RFP 
requirement is for $100 million or more and is not a typographical error and it was supposed to read 
“minimum of five 401(a) and five 457 plans each with $10 million or more”.  
 
Response:  The requirements stated in the RFP are correct.  It is the intent of BRA to review providers 
who are similar in size to the incumbent provider to benchmark services and expenses.   
 
Questions and Responses 
 
1. Please provide the current service days provided by your record keeper.  How many group meetings 

and how many individual meetings were held in 2015?  Please confirm the BRA is looking for 19 total 
days for plan participants (enrollment and education) a year moving forward. 
 
BRA will require enrollment meetings if/when a new provider is selected.  Currently, BRA estimates 
that 11 days of meetings will be required.  BRA will also require a provider to attend educational group 
meetings annually.  In 2015, the incumbent provider, conducted 12 group meetings over the course 
of 9 days.  In addition, employees at each location are given the opportunity to meet with a 
representative of the provider. 
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2. Does the employer direct the allocation of non-vested 401(a) money? 

 
Yes.  BRA requires that non-vested employer matching contributions be held in an asset allocation 
fund. 
 

3. Please describe the current process and timing for transferring money to the vested 401(a) plan. 
 

When an employee vests, we request that the provider transfer the employee’s funds from the non-
vested 401(a) fund to their new account in the vested 401(a) plan.  It typically takes the provider 3 – 
4 weeks to process the transfer request. 
 

4. Please provide the current vesting schedule.  Is there a specific reason why the unvested and vested 
401(a) plans remain separate?  Would BRA be open to consolidating to one plan if the vesting could 
be tracked as required within one plan? 

 
Employer matching contributions vest under a five-year cliff-vesting schedule.  BRA would be open 
to using one plan to hold employer contributions if a provider can restrict direction of non-vested 
employer contributions. 
 

5. Please provide current plan documents for all three plans. 
 

BRA will provide copies of plan documents and service agreements if/when a provider is named a 
finalist. 
 

6. Will BRA be looking to hire a third-party fiduciary? 
 

BRA intends that a single provider provide record keeping, discretionary fiduciary management of the 
investment options, and investment menu made available to plan participants.  If a provider 
outsources that service to a third-party fiduciary, the arrangement must be disclosed and related fees 
separately identified. 
 

7. Is it acceptable for the record keeper to team with a fiduciary in the bidding process and provide two 
separate prices? 

 
BRA intends that a single provider provide record keeping, discretionary fiduciary management of the 
investment options, and investment menu made available to plan participants.  If a provider 
outsources that service to a third-party fiduciary, the arrangement must be disclosed and related fees 
separately identified. 
 

8. Will your consultant be acting as an investment advisor on an ongoing basis? 
 
It is not the intent of the BRA to have an independent investment advisor on an ongoing basis.  We 
will select a vender that will provide record keeping, an investment platform, will actively and prudently 
manage the funds, and will provide discretionary fiduciary management of the investment options as 
part of their services. 
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9. Please provide the total number of employees by work site? 
 

Location Number Location Number 
Central Office 98 Temple-Belton 11 
Doshier Farm 7 Brushy Creek 27 
East Williamson County 9 Lake Granbury 16 
Possum Kingdom Lake  42 Lake Limestone 10 
Sugar Land 14   

 
10. Please provide information on the fixed funds in the plan today.  What is the current crediting rate?  

What is the expense ratio?  Are there any termination provisions or liquidity restrictions (i.e. MVA, 12-
month put, etc.)? 

 
The plan currently utilizes the VT PLUS Fund as the stable value option.  The fund has a Net 
Operating Expense Ratio of 1.38%.  The contract contains a 12-month put provision.   
 

11. For each plan, please provide a full fund lineup, including assets by fund and ticker symbols. 
 

BRA will provide the full fund lineup including assets by fund and ticker symbols if/when a provider is 
named as a finalist. 
 

12. What is the total number of Unique Participants across all plans? 
 

210 
 

13. What is the preferred date for the transfer of assets?  What is the preferred date for contract start 
date? 

 
Transfer of assets dates will be determined if/when a new provider is selected based on transition 
timelines.  Contract start date will be determined if/when a new provider is selected. 

 
14. Please provide the current service agreements 
 

BRA will provide copies of plan documents and service agreements if/when a provider is named a 
finalist. 
 

15. What are the current fees for the plan today? 
 

Plan administration costs are paid by plan participants through revenue sharing payments generated 
by plan investment options.  Currently, there are no billed expenses other than participant-initiated 
transactions costs (e.g. participant loans, withdrawals, self-directed brokerage account fees and 
commissions, DRO qualification, etc.).  Proposer responses must include a stated required revenue 
amount. 
 

16. Please indicate if any of the revenue produced by the fund lineup is kept by the record keeper or 
returned to the plan and/or participants. 

 
Currently, revenue sharing payments are retained by the plan’s record keeper.  Respondents should 
describe options available to level compensation including, implicit, direct fee assessment with no 
revenue sharing received from plan investment options, revenue sharing payments allocated to the 
plan for eligible expenses, and revenue sharing payments returned to the participant accounts 
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generating revenue sharing payments.  Proposer responses must include disclosure of ‘enterprise 
value’ crediting methodologies for use or proprietary investment options. 

 

17. Please provide a list of any ancillary fees that are currently being charged to the plan and/or its 
participants (i.e. QDROs, financial advice, etc.). 

 
Transaction Fee Paid by: 
Loan initiation $75 per application Participant 
Loan Maintenance $50 per year Participant 
ACH Reject $20 per occurrence Participant 
Advice $20 annual  Participant 
Managed Account 0.60% first $25,000 Participant 
 0.55% next $25,000  

0.45% next $50,000 
0.35% next $150,000 
0.25% over $150,000 

Self-Directed Brokerage $50 one-time set up fee Participant 
DRO Qualification $250  Participant 

 
18. Does the plan prefer a revenue requirement (implicit fee paid through revenue share of the plan) or 

an explicit per participant fee (asset-based or per-head) fee structure? 
 

Please quote your fees as a revenue requirement (e.g. implicit fee) assuming no revenue is received 
from plan investment options. 
 

19. Does the plan currently have a managed account program?  If so, please provide the total assets in 
that program today? 

 
The plan does not currently offer participants access to a managed account program. 
 

20. Does BRA have a preference for a fixed option type?  Would you prefer a stable value or general 
account solution? 

 
BRA does not have a preference.  However, responses including proprietary investment options 
should include a description of ‘enterprise’ value crediting methodologies for the use of proprietary 
investment options. 
 

21. Does the plan currently utilize a self-directed brokerage option?  If so, please provide the company 
being used as well as the total assets in the program today? 

 
The plan makes a self-directed brokerage option available to participants.  Currently there are no 
participants using the self-directed brokerage option. 
 

22. Can you please provide a list of current plan assets by investment option? 
 

BRA will provide the full fund lineup including assets by fund and ticker symbols if/when a provider is 
named as a finalist. 
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23. Can you please provide a number of employees by each individual location? 
 

Location Number Location Number 
Central Office 98 Temple-Belton 11 
Doshier Farm 7 Brushy Creek 27 
East Williamson County 9 Lake Granbury 16 
Possum Kingdom Lake  42 Lake Limestone 10 
Sugar Land 14   

 
24. Can you provide a breakdown of plan assets by investment or asset class? 
 

BRA will provide the full fund lineup including assets by fund and ticker symbols if/when a provider is 
named as a finalist. 
 

25. What is the current interest rate on the fixed/stable assets? 
 

The current crediting rate as of April 1 for the VT PLUS Fund is 1.08% (annualized). 
 

26. Can you confirm that ICMA-RC is the provider for all plans? 
 

Yes, the plans are currently record kept by ICMA-RC. 
 

27. Do you have an estimated conversion date in mind? 
 

Transfer of assets dates will be determined if/when a new provider is selected based on transition 
timelines.  Contract start date will be determined if/when a new provider is selected. 
 

28. Can you clarify what is meant by “discretionary management” on page 10? 
 

BRA intends that a single provider provide record keeping, discretionary fiduciary management of 
plan investment options, and investment menu made available to plan participants.  If a provider 
outsources that service to a third-party fiduciary, the arrangement must be disclosed and related fees 
separately identified. 
 

29. Are there any encumbrances regarding an asset transfer to a new vendor, for example, fee/penalty 
to move fixed income product? 

 
The plan currently utilizes the VT PLUS Fund as the stable value option.  The fund has a Net 
Operating Expense Ratio of 1.38%.  The contract contains a 12-month put provision.   
 

30. What is the current investment line up? 
 

BRA will provide the full fund lineup including assets by fund and ticker symbols if/when a provider is 
named as a finalist. 
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31. Would you favor a domestic company as a provider of choice? 
 

Respondents must be licensed to conduct business in the State of Texas. 
 

32. What are the product fees? 
 

Plan administration costs are paid by plan participants through revenue sharing payments generated 
by plan investment options.  Currently, there are no billed expenses other than participant-initiated 
transactions costs (e.g. participant loans, withdrawals, self-directed brokerage account fees and 
commissions, DRO qualification, etc.). 
 
Transaction Fee Paid by: 
Loan initiation $75 per application Participant 
Loan Maintenance $50 per year Participant 
ACH Reject $20 per occurrence Participant 
Advice $20 annual  Participant 
Managed Account 0.60% first $25,000 Participant 
 0.55% next $25,000  

0.45% next $50,000 
0.35% next $150,000 
0.25% over $150,000 

Self-Directed Brokerage $50 one-time set up fee Participant 
DRO Qualification $250  Participant 

 
33. Can a proposing vendor include 403(b) assets to meet minimum qualifications? 

 
BRA is considering responses from providers with significant capabilities with respect to 
Governmental 457(b) and 401(a) plans.  If a proposer’s response includes references to plan types 
other than 457(b) and 401(a) plans, BRA may consider using defined contribution assets other than 
section 457 and 401(a) plans.  However, proposers must certify that the assets used to meet the 
criteria outlined in the RFP are defined contribution plan assets which are overseen by a plan sponsor, 
consultant, or committee, are not individual contract assets, are traded in a trust account on a daily 
value record keeping system, and include both participant and employer contributions.  If a prosper 
is selected as a finalist, only Governmental 457(b) and 401(a) plans meeting the criteria outlined in 
the RFP may be used as references. 
 

34. On the overview page, please clarify the total Enrollment Days Required.  Is that in addition to 
Educational Meeting Days Required for a total of 19 days per year?  Under Educational Meeting 
Days, you have 8 days, 12 meetings annually.  Do you want 8 days built in or 12 days? 

 
BRA will require enrollment meetings if/when a new provider is selected.  Currently, BRA estimates 
that 11 days of meetings will be required.  BRA will also require a provider to attend educational group 
meetings annually.  In 2015, the incumbent provider conducted 12 group meetings over the course 
of 9 days.  In addition, employees at each location are given the opportunity to meet with a 
representative of the provider. 
 

35. Are there 2 legal plans, the 457(b) and the 401(a)?  Are these record kept together or separate? 
 

There are three legal plans currently, the 457(b), the non-vested 401(a), and the vested 401(a).  The 
plans are record kept separately. 
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36. Do participants receive 1 or 2 statements? 
 

Participants receive 2 statements. 
 
Thank you for your participation. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jose G. (Lupe) Diaz 
Administrative Services Manager 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4600 Cobbs Drive • Waco, Texas 76710 
254 761 3123 • Fax 254 400 2123 

 


	Sincerely,
	Jose G. (Lupe) Diaz

